# Vahana Module-Environment

Version No: 1.0

#### **Approved By: Vahana Team**

#### **Decimal Technologies**

8th Floor, Tower D Pioneer Urban Square, Golf Course Ext Rd, Sector 62, Gurugram, Haryana-122102

#### **Document Control**

This document contains proprietary information of Decimal Technologies Pvt. Ltd. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored, copied, or transmitted in any form or by means electronic, mechanical, photocopying or otherwise, without the explicit written permission of Decimal Technologies.

Vahana Module: Environment	Version No: 1.0	
Project Name: Vahana Platform	Release Date: N/A	

#### **Document Control**

S.No	Type of Information	Document Data	
1.	Title	Vahana Module: Environment	
2.	Document No	VME_01	
3.	Document Version No	1.0	
4.	Document Owner	Ashmit Kohli	
5.	Document Author(s)	Kumar Saurabh/Lakshay Virmani	
6.	Document Approver	Vahana Team	

#### **Document Update Summary**

Version No	<b>Revision Date</b>	Nature of Change	Reviewer	Date Approved
V 1.0	8/May/2020	1 <sup>st</sup> Draft	Ashmit Kohli	N/A

# **Table of Contents**

1.	Intro	oduction	5
	1.1	Document Purpose	5
	1.2	Document Scope	5
	1.3	Intended Audience	5
	1.4	Acronyms and Abbreviation	5
	1.5	Reference Document	6
2.	Envi	ironment Overview	7
	2.1	Accessing Environment Module	8
	2.2	Configuring Vahana Run Time	9
	2.2.	1 Viewing Details of VRT	. 11
	2.3	Configuring Environment	. 13
	2.4	Configuring Environment Variables	. 16
	2.4.	1 Viewing Details of Environment Variables	. 20
	2.5	Exporting Environment Variable	.21

Vahana Module: Environment	Version No: 1.0	
Project Name: Vahana Platform	Release Date: N/A	

Confidential



# Vahana Module-Environment

# 1. Introduction

## **1.1 Document Purpose**

The purpose of this document is to explain Vahana environment. Vahana cloud platform incorporates a dedicated module, which is referred to as "Environment". The environment module allows you to build and manage application development and runtime environment. In the environment module, this document discusses three components: *Variables: Environment*, and *VRT(s)* (Vahana Run Time).

## **1.2 Document Scope**

The functional scope of this document contains two following sections:

**Section1**:- This section is the current section of the document, which provides the general information about the document as follows:

- Purpose of the document
- > Functional scope of the document (Current heading section)
- > Audience that can access the content of document
- > List of abbreviated terms along with their full description, and
- Reference document (If any)

**Section2:-** This section contains technical and functional information about Vahana platform's environment module. In the broad level description of the environment module, it describes environment, variable, and VRT as entities. This section provides in-depth information on how create and manage variables, runtime environments, and others. To make the description interactive and informative, the document includes intuitive screen captures and easy-to-perform functional steps.

## **1.3 Intended Audience**

This document is mainly written for the IT, IT support, infrastructure, and dev ops teams of the client organizations. Also software development team and technical professional can also access this document.

## **1.4 Acronyms and Abbreviation**

The following table contains the abbreviated terms that are repeatedly used in the document, in addition to the full description of the respective term.

Term	Description
VRT	Vahana Runtime

Vahana Module: Environment	Version No: 1.0	
Project Name: Vahana Platform	Release Date: N/A	

### **1.5 Reference Document**

In relation to the technical and/or functional information about the environment module of the Vahana cloud platform, this document does not reference any other Decimal proprietary or third party document.

Document Name	Version	Date	Company/Organization
N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A



# 2. Environment Overview

The Vahana cloud platform hosts several applications and services that include vDesigner application, vConnect portal, Access Policy, Environment, and others. Each application/service that is hosted on the Vahana platform is used for specific purpose. For instance: - You can use vDesigner application to design and develop mobile phone and the vConnect portal to deploy and publish web services and API(s).

Likewise, the Vahana platform hosts the environment module to build application development and runtime environment for the client-specific projects. After you build an environment for application development and testing purposes, you can perform two activities:

- > You can sync the native application environment with client specific environment.
- > You can create special environment variables and then export them to the client application environment.

While working on several project assignments, you can work with different client-specific requirements and application environment constraint. A few client organization do not want to provide the direct access to their servers, citing data-privacy and external protection threat. In that case where you cannot access the external servers, you can create environment variables and then export them to the clientenvironment so that you can carry application development activity and then provide delivery modules securely and timely.

If the client organization provides you the access to the server, you can sync your services with the client application environment. That is how the environment module provides the cohesive flexibility to build the environment following client-specific requirements.

Constituently, the environment module allows you to create, configure, and manage three components: VRT(s), environment, and environment variables. You can configure and manage three components as follows:

The following section of the document starts with how to access the environment module.

Vahana Module: Environment	Version No: 1.0	
Project Name: Vahana Platform	Release Date: N/A	

#### 2.1 Accessing Environment Module

To access the environment module:

1. On the Vahana portal's dashboard, locate the Environment tile (Fig 2.1 (a)).

project 2		5	API	16
kyc.	Environment -+	vDesignet	vConnect	vEnable
task3	13.01.2000 Register pur application	123-01-2020 Design at pixelitations for module.	13.01.2028 being one Develop and Publish	13.01.2020 Design soft sender application for
CUSTOM	analogent and surface spec-	Allectones	printing they	Lapture
vertication X		1		
สะมันก	2	*		
monday	AccessePolicy 13-01-2020	Download APK 13-01-2020		
Assignment	Regular score policy and define preside groups?(a)	Disardunal post Motoly application		
Colour Lottine				

(Fig 2.1 (a))

2. Click the Environment tile (Fig 2.1 (a)), the Vahana dashboard displays three components: Variables, Environment, and VRTs (Vahana Run Time).

V			Mone 😔 🛛 Mishay virmani 🛩
Variables Environment	VRTs (Vahana Bun Tima)		
SAMED BOX	The Environment tab by default is selected.	Click to see record	

(Fig 2.1 (b))

3. After you access the environment module, you can configure and manage these components as follows:



## 2.2 Configuring Vahana Run Time

VRT, which denotes Vahana Run Time, is a newly added feature in the Environment module. The functional benefit of this feature is that it allows you to export the environment variables to the client application environment. As described earlier in the document, the client-organization may deny to provide the access to the server as a result of security reasons. In this case, you can use the Vahana run time feature to export the environment variable to the client application environment.

Exporting variables to the client application environment allows you to provide services to the client organization without accessing their server machines. Through environment variables, you can provide development and UAT (User Acceptance Testing) environments to the client organization, in addition to the delivery modules and API(s).

To create an environment, you mandatorily need to create VRT. In the environment module, the VRT component allows you to allocate the virtual space to an environment at the time you create the respective environment.

To configure Vahana run time:

1. On the Vahana dashboard, locate the VRTs (Vahana Run Time) tab (Fig 2.2 (a)).

Variables	Environment	VRTs (Vahana Run Time)	
			Click to see record
$\left( \right)$	)	+	
SAND_B	x	ADD	

(Fig 2.2 (a))

Vahana Module: Environment	Version No: 1.0	
Project Name: Vahana Platform	Release Date: N/A	

2. Click the VRTs (Vahana Run Time) tab (Fig 2.2 (a)), the Vahana dashboard displays the details of existing VRT(s).

Variables	Environment	VRTs (Mahana Run Time)							
	Q, Section								Add VRT
	Name	Orgid	Appld	Vitt Type		Description	Actio	m	
	-	DECIMAL-REPORTED	KUMAR 27-FRUIDS/180H		https://wedow.sabasa.bas	SAND, BOX Config Server A.	/	0	
	uia	DECIMAL XEROHHBER	KUMAR 27 FVUKPSFROH		https://www.huit.com	New UKI Agent	1	÷0	ŧ

(Fig 2.2 (b))

3. On the Vahana dashboard, click Add VRT (Fig 2.2 (b)), the Create VRT dialog box (Fig 2.2 (c)) opens.

	Please pr	rovide the be	low details to (	create VRT.	
VRT Na	me				
VRT N	ame				
VRT Typ	0				
SYNC					
Enter IP					
Enter	IP				
Descrip	tion				

(Fig 2.2 (c))

4. In the Create VRT dialog box, enter or select the values in the respective boxes as follows:

Box/List	Description
VRT Name	In this box, enter the name of new VRT (For example: - UAT1).
VRT Type	Click this list to select any of the following values:
	SYNC Select this value if you want to sync environment-hosted applications and services with the client application environment. You choose this value when you have access to the client's conver
	to the client's server.

Confidential

Vahana Module: Environment	Version No: 1.0	
Project Name: Vahana Platform	Release Date: N/A	

	> EXPORT
	Select this value if you want to export the environment variable to the client
	application environment. You choose this value if you do not have the access to the
	client's server machine.
Enter IP	In this box, enter the web location/IP address where you want to host newly created
	environment.
Description	In this box, enter a brief description about new VRT that you are creating.

5. After you enter/select values in the respective box, click **Create**, the new VRT is successfully created.

( lienth							Add VR
Nome	Orgid	Appld	чит туре		Description	Action	
LAND, BOX	DECIMIL ADJPCIATY	VERIFICATION JOOPCING	E.4.	Wigo, Social constraints	SAND, JUSE Config Server A	10	8
LWF	DECMAL FULFELHTY	VERTICATION 302047063	EH SYNC	With Fing when had one	/ sar	10	

(Fig 2.2 (d))

#### 2.2.1 Viewing Details of VRT

You can view the details of newly created and existing VRT(s) on the Vahana dashboard. By viewing the configuration details of VRT, you can observe VRT configuration and then modify the current configuration details as per requirement.

To view the details of VRT:

1. On the Vahana dashboard, locate the VRTs (Vahana Run Time) tab (Fig 2.2.1 (a)).



Confidential	© Decimal Technologies, 2020	Page 11 of 22

2. Click the VRTs (Vahana Run Time) tab (Fig 2.2.1 (a)), the Vahana dashboard displays the details of existing VRT(s).

Variables	Environment	VRTs (Valsana Run Time)							
	Q, Sect.								Add VRT
	Name	Orgid	Appld	VILT Type		Description	Action	4	
	-	DECIMAL-RECORDER	KUMAR 21-PHORPS/HOH		https://wedooceabaractore	SAND, BOX Gonly Server A.	1	0 1	i.
	uar	DECMAL KEDINHUM	KUMMAR 27.FVUKPSFRIGH		Interacting where the com	New UR7 Aquest	1	0 8	ŧ

(Fig 2.2.1 (b))

3. The configuration details (Fig 2.2.1 (b)) of VRT are briefly described as below:

Column	Description						
Name	This column displays the name of VRT.						
Orgid	This column displays the unique org ID of the project/application/app under which you						
	have created the VRT.						
Appid	This column displays the unique app ID of the project/application/app under which you						
	have created the VRT.						
	Note:-						
	On the Vahana platform, when you create a new application, Vahana automatically						
	creates a unique org ID and app ID and then assign them to the new application. The						
	app id and org ID are not the part of configuration details of VRT. These values only						
	denote the application under which VRT is created.						
VRT Type	This column displays:						
	SYNC if VRT is configured to sync the services with the client application						
	environment.						
	EXPORT if VRT is configured to export the environment variables to the client						
	application environment.						
IP	This column displays the location where the environment is hosted.						
Description	This column displays the brief description of the VRT.						
Action	This column displays three icons, which are described as below:						
	( ): This icon is used to modify the configuration details of VRT.						
	<ul> <li>(<sup>(O)</sup>): This icon is used to view the configuration details of VRT.</li> </ul>						
	> ( ): This icon is used to delete the profile of the VRT.						



## 2.3 Configuring Environment

In the "Environment module", the environment component is used to host product applications and services. These applications and services include web based product applications, portals, mobile apps, RESTful API (Web APIs), python based database procedures as dedicated web services, etc. In the environment module, an environment is created and configured to build a development environment, testing environment, and production-ready environment.

In the development environment, the product is developed and tested. For testing related activity, a new and dedicated environment (For example: - UAT) can be created, in which only testing related activities are performed.

When you access the environment module, it provides **SAND\_BOX** as in-built environment. You can use the **SAND\_BOX** environment for product development and testing that includes the development of a proto type for demo purposes, full-fledged product development, functional and performance testing, and client-specific UAT (User Acceptance Testing).

To develop and test a product, you can use **SAND\_BOX** or create a new dedicated environment. Usage of the existing environment or a newly created environment depends on client-specific requirements.

While configuring an environment, you choose a VRT on the Vahana dashboard. The workflow of an environment depends on how a VRT has been configured. If you have configured a VRT to sync applications and services, the environment is used to sync the application and services.

If you have configured a VRT to export environment variable, the environment is used to export the environment variable to the client-application environment.

To configure the environment:

1. On the Vahana dashboard, locate the Environment tab (Fig 2.3 (a)).

V		More 🐱 Iskibay elimani 🐱
Variables VIITa (Vahana Run Tines)		
	CB4 to sue noved	
$\frown$	Party for such Latricial	
SAND, BOX ADD		
	(Fig 2.3 (a))	

Confidential	© Decimal Technologies, 2020	Page 13 of 22

Vahana Module: Environment	Version No: 1.0	
Project Name: Vahana Platform	Release Date: N/A	

- 2. If not selected, click the **Environment** and then click **Add**, the dashboard displays the following fields **(Fig 2.3 (b))**:
- > Environment Name
- > VRT
- > Add Description

ublee Environment VRIs (Valvana Run Ti			
	1798 [		
	Click to use rect	ord	
$\frown$			
( )(+)			
SAND BOX ADD			
Provide the below details (All Salas are required)			
Environment Nerval <sup>4</sup>	987*		
UAT	Select VRT		
Keld discriminant	Set44, 987		
Access the second			
And managements	SAMD_BOX		

(Fig 2.3 (b))

3. In these boxes/list, enter values as follows:

Box/List	Description
Environment	In this box, enter the name of the environment (For example: - UAT).
Name	
VRT	Click this list to select the VRT (For example: - UAT). Selecting VRT can have two cases: <u>Case1</u> :- (If the selected VRT has been configured to sync services) The environment component will display <b>Sync</b> button (Fig 2.3 (c)) to sync applications and services.
	<u>Case2</u> :- (If the selected VRT has been configured to export variables) The environment component will display Export button (Fig 2.3 (d)) to export environment variable.
Add	In this box, enter brief description about the environment.
Description	

4. After you enter or select value in the respective box/list, click **Save**, the environment is successfully created.

Vahana Module: Environment	Version No: 1.0	
Project Name: Vahana Platform	Release Date: N/A	

Chairmann Planne*	Order in sectificar*	VIII		1
SAT Si yang generati Nang AT Environment	2	141	The availability of this SYNC button specifies that the UAT environment has been configured by using SYNC	
Add Variables			type VRT and this environment can only be used to sync environment hosted applications and services.	

#### (Fig 2.3 (c))



(Fig 2.3 (d))



## 2.4 Configuring Environment Variables

In the "Environment" module, variables, which are also referred to as "**Environment Variables**", are used to provide the access of Vahana resources to the client application environment. After environment variables are created, you can export them to client application environment.

On the Vahana cloud platform, environment variables are created and exported if the client organization does not want to provide the direct access to servers, citing security reasons. Many client organizations may ask for other alternative solutions to share resources, deliverables, builds, and other project related artifacts for ongoing or future software development projects.

In that critical case, the Vahana technical team first creates EXPORT type VRT and therefore uses it to configure an environment. <u>When you configure an environment by using the EXPORT type VRT</u>, you <u>can only use that environment to export environment variables</u>. You cannot use that environment to sync the resources.

Therefore you can add as many as environment variables to the EXPORT type environment. After you add environment variables to the environment, you can export them by clicking **Export** button on the dashboard of the respective environment.

#### Note:-

In the Environment module, adding variable to an environment means configuring variables.

When you add the environment variable to an environment, you configure the environment variable. The configuration details of the environment variable contain the details of resource (server, database repository, application service) that you want to share with the client application environment. You can share applications, services, and other resources by exporting the environment variable to the client application environment.

To access these resources, the client-specific server can import these environment variables. You can configure the environment variable as follows:

Vahana Module: Environment	Version No: 1.0	
Project Name: Vahana Platform	Release Date: N/A	

#### To configure environment variable:

1. On the Vahana dashboard, locate the Variables tab (Fig 2.4 (a)).

$\checkmark$		
Variables	VRTs (Vahana Run Time)	
		Click to see record
SAND_BOX	ADD +	



2. Click the Variables tab (Fig 2.4 (a)), the dashboard displays the list of earlier created variables.

. Search			(Add Veri
Variabiles Norma	SAND_BOX	UAT	Action
SINO_URL	0		/ 0 1
R. PORCE, LOGIN	0		/ © 1
ANC STAC CONFIG VERSION	0		/ @ #



3. On the dashboard, click Add Variables (Fig 2.4 (b)), the Create Variable dialog box (Fig 2.4 (c)) opens.

	Create Variable
	Please provide the below details to add variable.
Variable N	Vame
Variable	Name
Variable S	cope
Server (	Only 🔻
Variable [	Declaration Source ①
CLOUD	•
SAND_BO	хс

- (Fig 2.4 (c))
- 4. On the **Create Variable** dialog box, enter or select values in the respective boxes/lists as follows:

Box/List	Description
Variable Name	In this box, enter the name of variable (For example:- Demo_Var1)
Variable Scope	Click this list to select any of the following values:
	> Server Only
	Select this option to grant access to the exported variables on the server machine
	only.
	Server and Mobile
	Select this option to grant access to the exported variables on the server machine
	and mobile phone device.
Variable	Click this list to select any of the following values:
<b>Declaration Source</b>	> Cloud
	Select this value if you want to give the access of the environment variable on the
	global level. Access on the global level means that the resources from the external
	domain can access the environment variable based on the importing rights and
	permission.

Confidential

Vahana Module: Environment	Version No: 1.0	
Project Name: Vahana Platform	Release Date: N/A	

	VRT Select this value if you want to provide the access of the environment variable on the VRT level only.
Sand_box, UAT	The <b>Create Variable</b> dialog box displays the boxes (Fig 2.4 (d)) of all the available environments. In these boxes, you can enter IP address/URL (detail of the resource) that you want to export to the client application environment. These boxes only become active after you choose <b>CLOUD</b> in the <b>Variable</b>
	Declaration Source list.

Create Variable		
Please provide the below details to add variable.		
Variable Declaration Source		
CLOUD	•	In these boxes of different
SAND_BOX		enter the detail (URL, etc)
http://dev-api.cyberlotus.com/api/cyberhsm/them-yeu-cau		of the resources that you
UAT		want to share to the clien
http://dev-api.cyberlotus.com/api/cyberhsm/them-yeu-cau		environment through
	_	environment variables.
Create Book		
(1	ig 2.4 (d))	

5. After you enter/select the values in the respective boxes/lists, click **Create (Fig 2.4 (d))**, the environment variable is configured.

Vahana Module: Environment	Version No: 1.0	
Project Name: Vahana Platform	Release Date: N/A	

#### 2.4.1 Viewing Details of Environment Variables

On the Vahana dashboard, when you click the **Variables** tab, the dashboard displays the list **(Fig 2.4.1 (a))** of existing environment variables.

l, Sanh				Add Variable
Variables Name	SAND_BOX	UAT	VATONE	Action
DEMO_URL	0	0	0	/ 0 1
B. FORCE LOGIN	<u></u>	8	8	/ 0 1
PWC_SYNC_CONFIG_VERSION	0	8	8	/01
IL VERSION, LPGRADE, M	$\odot$	8	8	/ ⊘ i
LATEST_APK_VERSION_N	0	8	(3)	/ ⊙ ≣

<sup>(</sup>Fig 2.4.1 (a))

The list displays the details of variables under different columns/fields that are described as follows:

Field/Column	Description		
Variable Name	This field displays the name of environment variable.		
SAND_BOX, UAT,	These fields denote the name of existing environment. The field of specific		
UATONE	environment displays any of the following icons:		
	$\rightarrow$		
	This icon specifies that the environment variable is configured for the respective		
	environment.		
	This icon specifies that the environment variable is not configured for the respective		
	environment.		
Action	This column displays three icons, which are described as below:		
	<ul> <li>(         ): This icon is used to modify the configuration details of the environment variable.     </li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>(<sup>(O)</sup>): This icon is used to view the configuration details of the environment variable.</li> </ul>		
	$\succ$ ( $\widehat{\blacksquare}$ ): This icon is used to delete the profile of the environment variable.		



As it is described earlier in the document that you can export the environment variable by clicking the **Export** button on the dashboard of **Environment** module. On the dashboard, the Export button becomes available if you have configured the respective environment by using EXPORT type VRT. To know more about VRT, visit the heading section: <u>Configuring Vahana Run Time</u>.

To export the environment variable:

1. On the Vahana dashboard, click the **Environment** tab, the dashboard displays currently available environments (Fig 2.5 (a)).



2. Click the (EXPORT) type environment (For example: - UATONE), the dashboard displays the details of the environment.

$\cap$		Click to see record		
SAND BOX	T UATONE	ADD	Click here to export the environment variables.	
Economic Name*	Orilar in servicilizes*	VIT		Export
Aufe dimensional This Now UAY's Environment	is environment has been configured y using UATI VRT, which is EXPORT type VRT.			
Add Variables				
		(Fig 2.5 (D))		
Confidenti	al ©De	ecimal Technologies, 2020	Page 21 of	22

Vahana Module: Environment	Version No: 1.0	
Project Name: Vahana Platform	Release Date: N/A	

3. On the dashboard, click **Export (Fig 2.5 (b))**, the environment variables are exported to the client environment.

\*\*\*\*\*\*